
 
 

Charles-Hector Deslauriers 
(1898-1979) 

Founding parish priest of Mont-Tremblant 
 
On Sunday, August 11, 1928, in the little chapel in the village of Lac-Mercier where he had just 
celebrated mass, the new parish priest of the Sacré-Cœur-de-Jésus mission addressed his 
flock. Charles-Hector Deslauriers thanked his parishioners for their warm welcome: “I make a 
commitment,” said the young priest, “to promote the spiritual well-being of your souls, without 
neglecting the material progress of the whole parish.”  
 

It was not an empty promise. For the next 
50 years, in addition to his religious 
activities, Curé Deslauriers carried out a 
body of work that would influence the 
shared history and   individual paths of 
many Mont-Tremblant citizens. This 
churchman was not only a spiritual guide 
but a man of action who brought people 
together and was aware of the economic, 
social and environmental issues facing his 
parishioners.  
 
From his very first winters in Mont-
Tremblant, Charles-Hector Deslauriers 
encouraged young people to ski, created a 
local club and built a ski jump ramp. In 
October 1938, he learned that construction 
to create a ski resort at Mont Tremblant, the 

brainchild of an American, Joseph Bondurant 
Ryan, had been stopped because of an 
administrative muddle involving provincial 
authorities. At the end of a telephone marathon 
with the members of the Maurice Duplessis 
government, he had succeeded in straightening 
things out, and Mont Tremblant Lodge opened in 
February 1939. Having gained the confidence of 
Joe Ryan, Father Deslauriers subsequently 
mediated between the staff of Mont Tremblant 
Lodge—who were largely villagers—and the 
business owner.  

 

In June 1930, Mgr Eugène Limoges, bishop of Mont-Laurier, 
blessed the new church of Mont-Tremblant. Built by local 
contractor Euclide Dubois, it replaced the original modest 
chapel (at the left of the church in the photo).  

Source: SOPABIC, photographer unknown. 

In addition to having a big vegetable garden, from 
which he sold produce at a minimal cost, Father 
Deslauriers grew flowers and vegetables from seed in 
a greenhouse in which he also taught horticulture.  

Source: Société d’histoire Chute aux Iroquois, 
photographer unknown 



 
Convinced that tourism was the 
keystone of the local economy and 
that the people of Lac-Mercier should 
direct their own destiny, he succeeded 
in having Québec create, in June 
1940, the municipality of Mont-
Tremblant, whose borders were 
identical to those of the parish.  
 
An ecologist before the term was even 
invented, Charles-Hector Deslauriers 
fought for the protection of the 
landscape and the environment. In 
1942, he created the Club 4-H de 
Mont-Tremblant, which encouraged 
rural young people to preserve natural 
resources, particularly the forest. He 

was very active in the movement, 
becoming the provincial moral advisor 
in 1952. He founded and led the 
Société d’horticulture de Mont-
Tremblant and, from his pulpit on 
Sunday, reminded his parishioners of 
the importance of making their 
properties more attractive, of cleaning 

up their land, and of planting flowers 
and trees. In 1960, with the support 
of the International Paper Company, 
he created the Association de la 
vallée de la Rouge (Rouge River 
Valley Association), dedicated to 
reforestation of the region. Ten years 
later, it was estimated that, thanks to 
the Association, close to one million 
trees were being planted annually in 
the 37 member municipalities. This 
commitment won him an award from 
the Ordre du mérite forestier as well 
as the national award “L’homme et 
les ressources naturelles” (Man and 
Natural Resources), which was 
bestowed jointly with the Association. 
 
 
The name Charles-Hector 
Deslauriers is inextricably linked with 
that of Mont-Tremblant. From the 
wooden church to the ski trails, and 

Perfectly bilingual, Charles-Hector Deslauriers established a close 
relationship with the owners of Mont Tremblant Lodge. We see him 
here in September 1960 on the hotel’s new golf course, 
accompanied by Hugh Reed and Mary Ryan, who managed the 
company after the death of her husband in 1950.  

Source: Société d’histoire Chute aux Iroquois, Jan Brunner, 
photographer. 

Curé Deslauriers was well known in forest industry and reforestation 
circles. Here he gives a speech at the annual conference of the 4-H 
Clubs.  

Source: Société d’histoire Chute aux Iroquois, date unknown, Gérard 
A. Laferrière, photographer. 



 
from the pine plantations that dot the territory to the memories of the villagers, there are 
numerous testimonials that speak to the work of this most unusual parish priest who was as 
comfortable with the powerful as with the homeless, and who planted trees and prayed for snow.  
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In the middle of the 1970s, when religious practice was in free fall, Curé Deslauriers wrote a weekly column 
in a local newspaper. Here he expresses himself on the subject of clerical celibacy.  

Source: Société d’histoire Chute aux Iroquois, La vallée de la Diable, October 9, 1975. 


